
Meeting Minutes 
March 10, 2026 

1 
 

 
MINUTES OF MECKLENBURG COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
The Board of Commissioners of Mecklenburg County, North Carolina, met in Budget/Public Policy 
Session in Conference Center Room 267 on the 2nd floor of the Charlotte-Mecklenburg 
Government Center located at 600 East Fourth Street, Charlotte, North Carolina, at 2:30 p.m. on 
Tuesday, March 10, 2026. 
 

ATTENDANCE 
 
Present:  Chair Mark Jerrell, Vice-Chair Leigh Altman  

and Commissioners George Dunlap, Arthur Griffin,  
Laura J. Meier, Elaine Powell, Vilma D. Leake 
Susan Rodriguez-McDowell, Yvette Townsend-Ingram 
County Manager Michael Bryant 
County Attorney Tyrone C. Wade 
Clerk to the Board Kristine M. Smith 
Deputy Clerk to the Board Arlissa Eason 

 
Absent:  None    
 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER  
 
The meeting was called to order by Chair Mark Jerrell, which was followed by reading of the 
County’s Mission and Vision and the FY2026 Board Budget Priorities, introductions, and the 
Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag. 
 
  
26-0099  Access to Care Presentation 
 
The Board received a presentation from Access to Care.   
 
Background: This presentation will walk through the County's approach to expanding access to 
health care services. Key topics include how Medicaid and other funding sources support care 
delivery and the current gap among uninsured residents. The discussion will also highlight a 
subset of our broader network of partners and invite reflection on how we define "access" in 
building a more effective system of care. 
 
 
Chair Jerrell recognized former City Councilman, Mr. Al Austin 
 
Benjamin Chambers, Business Manager, Public Health, Dr. Ray Feaster, Internal Medicine 
Provider, and Don Holloman, CEO of Cabarrus Rowan Community Health Centers, gave the 
presentation.    

 

Panelists: Dr. Ray Feaster Internal Medicine Provider at Novant Health First Charlotte 
Physicians Elizabeth Clinic and Don Holloman CEO of Cabarrus Rowan Community Health 
Centers, Inc. 



Meeting Minutes 
March 10, 2026 

2 
 



Meeting Minutes 
March 10, 2026 

3 
 



Meeting Minutes 
March 10, 2026 

4 
 



Meeting Minutes 
March 10, 2026 

5 
 



Meeting Minutes 
March 10, 2026 

6 
 

 
 



Meeting Minutes 
March 10, 2026 

7 
 

 
Comments 
Commissioner Leake said her concerns included mobility, accessible information, and the 
availability of resources to the community.  She said there were only about 15,000 people in the 
community being served and asked how they could increase the process. Dr. Feaster said mobile 
units showed success, which brought healthcare into communities where access may be limited 
and there were models in which primary care providers managed telehealth services. She said 
virtual and video visits could be a barrier for some seniors, but there was help for that, as well as 
partnerships with developers to set up video visit devices in apartment communities.   

Commissioner Leake asked how they ensured this information reached males and seniors in the 
community.  Dr. Feaster said males were often more challenging due to trust issues.  She said 
partnering beyond doctors and with faith-based organizations could help. 

 

Commissioner Griffin asked what success would look like in five years regarding access to primary 
healthcare and what role the County would play in primary care.  He said 55% of people on 
Medicaid in the first six months of 2024 did not see a doctor in a 12-month period and asked 
what the cause was.   He asked how they could steer Atrium Health, Novant Health, and the 
federally qualified health centers attention to the right populations.  He asked how they could 
provide more data so the County could be the policy advocate for Novant, Atrium, and other 
services.   

Commissioner Griffin said people were not coming on the buses for OB-GYN or primary care and 
whether he should advocate for more participation or find more taxpayer money to create more 
primary care providers. 

Mr. Holloman said success looked like increased touch points, comprehensive care, decreased 
patient wait times, and reliance on the ER for nonemergency situations. He said mobile clinics 
brought access to individuals, particularly the geriatric population. He said they needed to be able 
to bring the mobile units to the assisted living facilities, nursing homes, and recreational centers, 
and they were partnering with the County to do so.  He said they used the data to see where 
people were coming from, so they could get the services to them.  He said they targeted high-
need areas and brought the services to marginalized communities.   Dr.  Feaster said they needed 
to be in the right place at the right time and to provide after-hours care when people were not at 
work, and that included mobile units, for patient convenience. 

Commissioner Powell said healthcare had to be available after hours.  She asked how they could 
optimize mobile units and partnerships.  She said the Foundation for the Carolinas and businesses 
seeking tax incentives could be a part of the solution as well.  She said the needs were 
everywhere, and she would like to see the mobile units optimized and offered at reasonable 
hours for everyone who needed healthcare, including those in the Towns. 

Commissioner Townsend-Ingram asked whether childcare had been considered a barrier to 
receiving healthcare and how the County could facilitate partnerships for medical care in areas 
where people were in need.  She said she had concerns with data monitoring and whether they 
were measuring the right things to go in the right direction. She asked which was a bigger priority: 
preventive mental healthcare or being reactive.  Dr. Feaster said childcare was a barrier to 
parents seeking care, but they welcomed children to come in with their parents.  She said she saw 
those who made too much to qualify for childcare assistance but could not pay the cost, and it 



Meeting Minutes 
March 10, 2026 

8 
 

would take a collective effort to make childcare services more affordable so people could access 
healthcare.  She said she looked at how they could expand virtual services to specific locations in 
the West End Co-op, and if there were healthcare gaps or deserts in the districts, they wanted to 
know so they could work to fill them. 

Commissioner Rodriguez-McDowell asked if there was something to explain how the County 
dollars and investments in primary care partnerships were impacting the progress. She asked 
whether it was the County’s role to look for areas with deserts.   She said the balanced scorecard 
showed they were meeting or exceeding their targets and asked if they should change their 
targets and look at other things.  County Manager Bryant said the purpose of the briefings was 
to share what they were currently tracking and other areas the Board may want to consider.  He 
said that when they finalized the initial draft, they would consider all the feedback.   

Commissioner Rodriguez-McDowell asked whether the information was comprehensive of 
everything they were tracking.  County Manager Bryant said it was specific to that area.  Mr. 
Griswold explained the process.  He said, in some instances, they would achieve everything, then 
shift to maintenance mode, but just because they met a target did not necessarily mean they 
would change a target, but could just indicate that, for that one instance, they were moving in 
the right direction.  Mr. Chambers said the improvement was about reaching touchpoints.  He 
said multiple partners were opening new clinics and touchpoints, and the Sugar Creek Health 
Center was a great example of that.  He said they expected that to continue to improve in FY26. 

Commissioner Meier said the way forward seemed to be through partnerships.  She said the 
money was with Atrium and Novant, and partnering with them was extremely important for the 
community. She said comprehensive was extremely important, and she would like them to go in 
that direction. 

Commissioner Dunlap said if they were already meeting the targets, their proposed targets were 
not high enough. He asked what was producing the increase in unserved residents if no additional 
dollars were added.  He said their partners at Atrium and Novant recognized that when health 
care increased, they reduced emergency room expenses and suggested they be better partners 
to reduce their costs.  He asked how they could reduce fees to increase access to care by reducing 
costs.  Mr. Chambers said it took time for the FY22-24 investment to build the clinics and for the 
new locations to engage the community to let people know they were available to offer services, 
which began to happen in FY25. He said there was a slight mismatch between the years when 
funding increased and the years when the number of people served increased.     

Commissioner Dunlap said he was not sure where the goal should be because they were seeing 
a lag and an increase of 3,000 people and asked how much more they could get from the $3.5 
million.  Mr. Chambers said they expected those numbers to increase in the current fiscal year, 
but they had not done the math for those projections. County Manager Bryant said staff 
conversations with teams at Atrium, Novant, and the community health centers were going well 
regarding fees and partnerships.  He said the hope was that, although things were tight 
financially, they could leverage each other’s services, which might also affect the fees.    

Vice Chair Altman suggested they continue to measure vaccinations for children 24 months of 
age and the suppression of the HIV viral load, but she wanted to see a new metric around access 
to telehealth through County assets.  She said she would support the work through churches and 
that during their retreat, they discussed making it accessible through County recreation centers.  



Meeting Minutes 
March 10, 2026 

9 
 

She said good primary care could be achieved remotely and recommended a smart goal to 
expand telehealth access with an equity lens to close the gaps.   

Chair Jerrell said he was concerned about setting goals with variables beyond their control.  He 
said one of the goals he would like to consider was a direct-to-consumer model, meaning they 
would identify census tracks where underinsured and uninsured people lived.  He said he would 
like to see partnerships with grassroots organizations deployed into communities to provide 
information door-to-door and would follow up to see how many targets were hit in the most 
vulnerable census tracks. He said when the numbers rose, they would know whether to attribute 
it to people moving here or educational access.  He said all their partners had been great, but 
they continued to have limited results, and it didn’t appear the system itself was overburdened 
by access, but people were using the emergency room as their primary care.  He said he would 
like to see other effective ways to educate and inform. 

 
 
26-0101 Alliance Health Updates to the BOCC 
 
The Alliance Health Plan leaders provided information to the BOCC in response to the 
Commission’s questions about Alliance Health Plan's services and funding in Mecklenburg 
County. 
 
Background: At the December Public Policy meeting and multiple other BOCC venues, Board 
members have had questions about the role Alliance Health Plan plays in meeting the behavioral 
health needs of Mecklenburg County residents. Several Board members requested a presentation 
from Alliance to gain a better understanding of the current landscape. County and Board leaders 
met with Alliance leadership in February, and pertinent information shared in that meeting will 
be shared with the full BOCC in this presentation. 
 
Mr. Robert Robinson, CEO of Alliance Health, and Mr. Sean Schreiber, COO, gave the 
presentation. 
  
 
 

 
 



Meeting Minutes 
March 10, 2026 

10 
 

 
 

 
 



Meeting Minutes 
March 10, 2026 

11 
 

 
 

 
 



Meeting Minutes 
March 10, 2026 

12 
 

 
 

 
 



Meeting Minutes 
March 10, 2026 

13 
 

 
 
 

 
 



Meeting Minutes 
March 10, 2026 

14 
 

 
 
 
 
Comments 
Commissioner Powell asked for more information about families with children with autism and 
the financial impacts. Mr. Robinson said most Medicaid-enrolled children with autism were served 
by Alliance, which had seen significant growth in Applied Behavior Analysis (ABA) use. He said the 
State had eased access in recent years, helping more children receive the care they needed, but it 
also opened the door to some problematic providers.  

Vice-Chair Altman said they needed metrics on wait times, outcomes, and readmissions because 
she still could not tell how current performance compared to the past. She said she wanted 
insight into outcomes, not just inputs, and was glad children were no longer waiting in DSS 
offices. She noted reports of misused youth-service funds and was surprised to hear of major 
growth in support, asking whether that meant there was too much low-quality support. Mr. 
Robinson said they monitored the waitlist daily and connected callers immediately, going outside 
their network if needed. He said there were shortages of psychiatrists for Medicaid patients and 
children in DSS, especially those with complex needs, and said many DSS children had shifted to 
the BCBS child family specialty plan. Mr. Schreiber added that State rules required them to accept 
any Medicaid-enrolled provider, which allowed some low-quality providers into the network. He 
said while some ABA providers delivered good care, others over-utilized services and strained 
system capacity, making quality oversight harder 

 
Vice Chairman Altman said she would urge them to reach out to the psychiatric residency 
programs and beg them to admit more doctors, so they had more doctors to serve their 
communities.  Mr. Robinson said regarding the earlier question about access that there seemed 
to be greater access on one hand, while on the other, limited access.  He said some services, ABA 
services, peer support, etc., had needs that were not as great as the kids in foster care, and they 
paid very well, so providers wanted to serve that group.  He said the rates from the State were 
not the best, but they were trying to strike a balance. 
 

Commissioner Powell left the meeting at 4:11 p.m. 
 



Meeting Minutes 
March 10, 2026 

15 
 

Commissioner Dunlap said he no longer heard the concerns he once did and asked how they 
could reassure parents that their children would get the services they need. He asked if there 
was another Standard Plan provider. Mr. Robinson said Mecklenburg County had two health plans 
and that the Standard Plan covered about 85% of Medicaid members, focusing on people with 
low to moderate mental health needs. He said roughly 10% of county residents were enrolled in 
the Tailored Plan. 

Commissioner Dunlap said he supported removing bad actors and asked about Board 
appointments, remaining concerns, the need for more beds, and actions taken against those who 
violated trust. Mr. Robinson said he valued Mecklenburg County leadership but explained that 
once the Tailored Plan launched in 2024, Public Health became a contracted provider, and the 
contract barred providers from serving on the Board. Mr. Schreiber said North Carolina had a 
shortage of psychiatric beds and, while Mecklenburg might have enough on paper, they served 
people from across the State. He said foster-care youth faced similar challenges and that they 
were pushing alternatives like adult crisis facilities and expanded urgent care. He said low 
reimbursement rates made it difficult to build psychiatric hospital beds. 

Commissioner Meier asked which counties they served and how they were preparing for federal 
changes after Medicaid expansion. Mr. Robinson listed the seven counties: Johnston, Cumberland, 
Harnett, Wake, Orange, Durham, and Mecklenburg. Mr. Schreiber said Mecklenburg’s size and 
urban challenges, such as homelessness and access to care, created greater needs, which led to 
partnerships like the street psychiatry program with Atrium. Mr. Robinson said funding followed 
entitlement, so services had to be authorized and paid for anywhere in the seven-county region. 
He said he was very concerned about the possibility of losing Medicaid expansion and was 
engaged in advocacy, noting that while the expansion group was smaller than groups like the 
blind or disabled, they did not want those individuals to lose coverage. 

Commissioner Rodriguez-McDowell said the data did not clearly show progress. She said she was 
concerned there were zero adolescent substance-use beds and asked who was responsible for 
increasing that number, what the County could do to attract providers, and whether the State 
had been lobbied for support. She asked for clarification on Board member eligibility. Mr. 
Robinson said that when Alliance took over in 2021, County leadership served on the Board, but 
once they became a Tailored Plan in 2024 and contracted with Public Health became a provider, 
it created a conflict. He said the restriction did not apply to Commissioners, and Alliance wanted 
to find a compromise that would allow Mecklenburg County to have representation on the Board 
if desired. 

Chair Jerrell said Commissioner Griffin served on the Board and said County leadership had long 
viewed Board representation as a priority. He said Mr. Robinson was referring to an upcoming 
meeting to clarify expectations and ensure the right expertise was represented. Mr. Robinson 
said past progress was measured by access and provider growth, but becoming a Tailored Plan 
added Physical Health responsibility. He said new outcome-based metrics would be available in 
about a year. Mr. Schreiber said adolescent substance-use beds remained limited because 
Mecklenburg’s need alone was too small to justify a facility, and any new beds would also serve 
youth from across the State, requiring State partnership. Mr. Robinson said their government 
relations team actively lobbied for needed policy changes. 

 



Meeting Minutes 
March 10, 2026 

16 
 

Commissioner Townsend-Ingram asked where individuals who were not severe went, how they 
received referrals for children, and whether they had a dashboard with information.  Mr. 
Robinson said people with non-severe cases went back to commercial plans, and those with 
Medicaid who were non-urgent were in the Standard Plan, and they connected them to the 
services they needed.  He said the uninsured or underinsured were with them. Mr. Robinson said 
they had a 24/7 call line, and they received a lot of referrals from the community.     

Commissioner Griffin said when looking at the opioid and substance abuse disorder, there were 
about 1,200 residents of Mecklenburg County who received services, and that seemed low.  He 
asked how to respond to the public when they requested more mental health services, and 
whether that was due to a lack of providers.  Mr. Schreiber said there were roughly 2,000 people 
with Medicaid and another 1,000 who were uninsured, and that other services qualified and could 
be included in that number, so he would provide more detailed information. Mr. Robinson said 
the system was more complex than it once was because there were now nine health plans, so the 
cards let people know where to go for treatment.  He said sometimes people with Medicaid lost 
their cards, and others were not ready to access their insurance.  He said they tried to educate 
people, provided care managers to help them, and worked with their providers to ensure they 
educated people as well.    

Commissioner Leake asked how they could respond with County support and whether the 3.25 
million figure would increase.  Mr. Robinson said they could call or visit a provider, which would 
then connect them to resources.  He said he hoped the funds would increase as they ranked low 
in the country on mental health treatment.   

Commissioner Leake asked why funds had to pass through the State and not the federal 
government.  Mr. Robinson said it had always been that way. Mr. Schreiber said there was a 
difference between Medicaid and non-Medicaid, and they were handled differently.  He said that 
with Medicaid, they had to handle everyone, but block-grant dollars could be for a specific project 
or population, and those dollars were at risk because government funds were often cut. 

Manager Bryant said he would underscore that, in terms of responsibilities, there was often a 
perception that counties in North Carolina were responsible for funding mental health, but 
primarily, 66% of the funding was provided by the federal government and 34% by the State.  He 
said the services the County provided in between were categorized as gap services; however, core 
responsibilities were funded by state and federal funds.  

 

Motion was made by Commissioner Altman, seconded by Commissioner Griffin, and 
unanimously carried to extend the meeting to 5:15pm. 

 

Chair Jerrell asked for a response regarding the process and what it looked like when someone 
called.  Mr. Schrieber said that when someone called, they were connected to a member 
representative who conducted a quick screening, and if they were not in any danger and needed 
a referral, the representative would check whether they were covered by Alliance and eligible for 
services, then refer them to the provider. He said sometimes there was a warm transfer, or they 
could make an appointment electronically.  Mr. Schreiber said if they were not a member but had 
commercial insurance and it was in the system, they were referred to their provider.  He said that 
if anyone called and did not have coverage, they could get an appointment, and if they were in a 



Meeting Minutes 
March 10, 2026 

17 
 

crisis, a crisis team would be sent or arrangements made to get them to a crisis facility, so no one 
went without their needs being met.  He said they sometimes could not provide an answer, but 
the staff member followed up by contacting the insurance company to let them know their 
member called, then transferred the information to the insurance company for follow-up.  He said 
they did not always have visibility into which insurance the provider accepted, but if someone was 
not safe, regardless of their insurance status, they were referred to a crisis service and ensured 
they got to the facility.   

Chair Jerrell said a misconception in the community was that Mecklenburg County was 
responsible for delivering mental health services and that it was a service provider where people 
came in and out for treatment.  He said it was important that people understood that different 
providers offered different services, and that the relationship between Alliance and Mecklenburg 
County was statutory and therefore required.  He said he was committed to better educating the 
community about the County’s actual scope of responsibility and working more consistently with 
the Alliance team. 

 

Commissioner Meier left at 4:45 p.m. 

 
 
26- 0105 COMMISSIONER REPORTS 
 
 
Commissioners shared information of their choosing within the guidelines as established by the 
Board, which included, but not limited to, past and/or upcoming events. 
 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
  
With no further business to come before the Board, Chair Jerrell declared the meeting adjourned 
at 5:03 p.m. 
 
 
 
            
______________________________ ____________________________ 
Arlissa Eason, Deputy Clerk to the Board                                                               Mark Jerrell, Chair 
 
 


	MINUTES OF MECKLENBURG COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA
	ATTENDANCE


